CITY OF “A
@all‘/vinﬁ"& PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING

MISSOURI
JUNE 3, 2019

In the absence of Chairman Weaver, the meeting was called to order by Mayor Pogue at 7:10 p.m.
Chairman Weaver arrived at Members in attendance were:

PRESENT ABSENT
Chairman Mark Weaver Secretary Lisa Zimmerman
Commissioner Grant Alexander Commissioner Chad Silker

Commissioner Tracy Bolte
Commissioner Gary Carr
Commissioner Olivia Pieknik
Commissioner Victoria Winfrey
Alderman Kevin Roach

Mayor Tim Pogue

Assistant City Administrator Andy Hixson
City Attorney Robert E. Jones

A motion was made by Commissioner Alexander to accept the minutes as submitted. Commissioner Bolte
seconded the motion, which received unanimous approval from the Commission members present.

Mr. Gary Carr, 304 Portwind Place (Ward 1) was sworn in by Assistant City Administrator Andy Hixson.
Mr. Carr replaces Mr. Michael Utt, who was elected to the position of Ward 1 Alderman.

15401-15425 Manchester Road
Petitioner: Viking Partners, 4901 Hunt Rd, Cincinnati OH 45242

Mr. Clay Vance of Vance Engineering addressed the Commission, requesting approval for the lot
consolidation. The petitioner would like to consolidate the six lots into three parcels, which would be
governed by a real estate agreement among three different investors.

Mayor Pogue asked City Attorney Jones if he sees any issue with this consolidation regarding maintenance
of the facility and parking lot. City Attorney Jones said he does not, provided there are sufficient indentures
that describe the rights and responsibilities of the three lot owners and grants cross-access easements
across the entire site. Mr. Vance said that is the intention.

Chairman Weaver opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of petition SUB
19-02. No one came forward, and Chairman Weaver asked if anyone wished to speak in opposition to the
petition. No one came forward and Chairman Weaver closed the public hearing.



A motion was made by Mayor Pogue to recommend approval of petition SUB 19-02 to the Board of
Aldermen. Commissioner Pieknik seconded the motion, which received unanimous approval from the
Commission members present.

Mr. Steven Ibendahl of the I-5 Group gave highlights of the draft plan that was presented at the April
Planning & Zoning Commission meeting.

Mayor Pogue made a motion to strike the connection of Spring Oaks to Manchester Road from the plan
before the Planning & Zoning Commission adopts it. Commissioner Alexander seconded the motion, which
received unanimous approval from the Commission members present.

Alderman Roach thanked and commended the I-5 Group for their work on this project.

Chairman Weaver opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of the adoption
of the Comprehensive Plan.

Eric Olliff, 247 Oak Pass, said he appreciates the motion to strike the connection of Spring Oaks and
Manchester.

No one else came forward, and Chairman Weaver asked if anyone wished to speak in opposition to the
petition. No one came forward and Chairman Weaver closed the public hearing.

A motion was made by Commissioner Pieknik to approve the Resolution adopting the Ballwin 2019
Comprehensive Plan. Mayor Pogue seconded the motion, which received unanimous approval from the
Commission members present.

Medical Marijuana Land Uses

City Attorney Jones gave an overview of the ordinance for medical marijuana land uses and how it relates
to the state statute. Itis up to each city how they are placed into existing zoning classifications.

City Attorney Jones said that the state amendment allows cities to create up to a 1,000 feet spacing
limitation between the various uses and any school, child day care center, or church; however, that
distance would effectively space the facilities out of the city, so in order to accommodate the use, he and
City staff are suggesting a 300 ft. spacing.

City Attorney Jones and staff determined that such uses would be allowed only by special use exception in
the commercial C1, C2, C3, and S-1 zoning districts. They would not be allowed in residential or other
planned districts.

Alderman Roach asked if the state law allows for restrictions on hours of operations for the dispensaries.
City Attorney Jones said the amendment refers to time, space, and manner restrictions, which he interprets
to mean the city can make restrictions. Mr. Jones said those restrictions are in place in the City of O’Fallon’s
ordinance. Mayor Pogue said that the proposed ordinance mirrors what has been adopted by the City of
Ellisville.

Mayor Pogue said it is his understanding that only 24 dispensaries are allowed per congressional district,
so there will not be an overwhelming amount of these facilities. City Attorney Jones agreed, saying that the
state’s permitting process is strenuous as well.



Commissioner Alexander asked if it would be prudent to include a clause in our ordinance regarding
recreational distribution. City Attorney Jones said he does not recommend this, as it is unknown what
circumstances or issues may come up that would apply to recreation use as opposed to medical use. If that
were to happen in the future, it would have to come before the Planning & Zoning Commission.

Commissioner Pieknik said she would prefer to have a 500 ft distance rather than 300 ft. Assistant City
Administrator Hixson said that even 500 ft would space the facilities out of the commercial districts.
Commissioner Pieknik said that she would not be comfortable having one of these facilities close to a
family oriented business such as an ice cream parlor. City Attorney Jones said that this would be
considered as part of the SUE on a case-by-case basis.

Commissioner Pieknik asked about the definition of “premises” as it applies to those under 18. City
Attorney Jones said that the parking lot does not comprise the premises; it only includes inside the facility.
Commissioner Alexander said that loitering will not be allowed. Alderman Roach agreed and said the
police department will handle that situation.

Commissioner Alexander said it is his understanding that these facilities will look like pharmacies.
Assistant City Administrator Hixson said that is correct.

Alderman Roach asked if there are any noise issues associated with the manufacturing facilities. City
Attorney Jones said he is not aware of any. Assistant City Administrator Hixson said if there’s any question
when it comes before the Planning & Zoning Commission, the petitioner can be required to provide a noise
study.

Chairman Weaver opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wished to speak in favor of petition Z 19-
02.

Martin Schnipper, 163-A Rock Trail Dr., said he used to live in Denver, Colorado, and noted the issues
that came up there. He said the exterior of some dispensaries in Denver became gaudy in appearance
and signage. He noted that federal banking is an issue, and the facilities became cash businesses.
Regarding cultivation, the issue was private cultivation. Noise was not an issue, but the pungent aroma,
and heavy use of water and electricity were.

Mayor Pogue stated that he and Assistant City Administrator Hixson attended a seminar on medical
marijuana, and banking regulations have opened up to handle those transactions.

No one else came forward, and Chairman Weaver asked if anyone wished to speak in opposition to the
petition. No one came forward and Chairman Weaver closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Bolte asked if there is any commercial property large enough to accommodate a cultivation
facility. City Attorney Jones said possibly in the southern portion of the city, where annexation is being
considered.

Larry Stiffelman, 110 Meadowbrook Country Club Estates Dr., said he feels the Planning & Zoning
Commission would be concerned about personal cultivation.

Commissioner Bolte said his question was specifically about commercial cultivation.

A motion was made by Mayor Pogue to recommend approval of petition Z 19-02 to the Board of Aldermen.
Commissioner Bolte seconded the motion, which received unanimous approval from the Commission
members present.



Mayor Pogue nominated Mark Weaver as Chairman. Mr. Weaver accepted the nomination. Commissioner
Bolte seconded the nomination, which received unanimous approval from the Commission members present.
Because Secretary Zimmerman was not in attendance, the nomination and vote for secretary will be held
over to the next meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission.

Assistant City Administrator Hixson stated that no meeting will be held in July.

Mayor Pogue made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Pieknik seconded the motion, which
received unanimous approval from the Commission members present. The meeting was adjourned at 7:55
p.m.

Mark Weaver, Chairman
Planning & Zoning Commission



